ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, | NTERNATI ONAL
TRADE AND TOURI SM
February 15, 2011
10: 19 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Herron, Chair
Representative Kurt O son, Vice Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representative Wes Kel |l er
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Miunoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Berta Gardner
Representative Chris Tuck

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representative Eric Feige
Senat or Joe Paskvan

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

DI SCUSSI ON ON PLANNED CLOSURE OF THE KENAI LI QUI FI ED NATURAL GAS
PLANT

- HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 67
"An Act relating to transferable film production tax credits;
and providing for an effective date by anmending the effective
dates of secs. 3 and 4, ch. 63, SLA 2008."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 67

SHORT TI TLE: FI LM PRODUCTI ON TAX CREDI T
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) TUCK, HERRON

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -1- February 15, 2011



01/ 18/ 11 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 18/ 11 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 11 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 26/ 11 (H) EDT REFERRAL ADDED BEFORE L&C
02/ 10/ 11 (H EDT AT 10: 15 AM BARNES 124

02/ 10/ 11 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 10/ 11 (H) M NUTE( EDT)

02/ 15/ 11 (H EDT AT 10: 15 AM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided a statenent via a previously
recorded video during the discussion on Planned C osure of the
Kenai Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG Pl ant.

TOM NELSON, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnment (DLWVD)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion on Planned
Cl osure of the Kenai Liquefied Natural Gas Pl ant.

DAN CLARK, WManager

Cook Inlet Assets

ConocoPhi | I'i ps Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided discussion points during the
di scussion on Planned Cl osure of the Kenai Liquefied Natural Gas
Pl ant .

JANI' S WLSON, Conmm ssi oner

Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Al aska (RCA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion on Planned
Cl osure of the Kenai Liquefied Natural Gas Pl ant.

COLLEEN STARRI NG Presi dent

ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion on Planned
Cl osure of the Kenai Liquefied Natural Gas Pl ant.

CARRI LOCKHART, Asset Team Manager
Marat hon G| Corporation

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 2- February 15, 2011



Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during discussion

on

Pl ant Cl osure of the Kenai Liquefied Natural Gas Pl ant.

PETE KALAMARI DES
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.

Cl NDY DRAPER, Rental s Manager

ABC Mot or hone and Car Rental, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.

BRI CE HABERGER
Juneau, Al aska

Pl anned

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 67.

TED SM TH
Barrow, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.

GARY ZI MVERMAN, Gener al Manager - St at ewi de

Avi s Rent - A- Car

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.

MAYA SALGANAK, Assistant Professor of FilmVideo Arts;
Director of Film Studies

Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF)

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.

GREG KESSLER, Al aska Commercial Director

Totem Ccean Trailer Express, Inc. (TOTE)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.

KAREN TALLENT, Studio Teacher

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 67.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

10: 19: 53 AM

CHAI R BOB HERRON cal l ed the House Special Committee on Economc
Devel opnent, International Trade and Tourism neeting to order at

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 3- February 15, 2011



10:19 a.m Present at the call to order were Representatives
Herron, O son, Thonpson, and Foster. Representatives Keller,
Munoz, Gardner, and Tuck arrived as the neeting was in progress.
Representatives Anna Fairclough and Eric Feige, and Senator Joe
Paskvan were al so present.

DI SCUSSI ON ON PLANNED CLOSURE OF THE KENAI LI QUI FI ED NATURAL GAS
PLANT

10: 20: 15 AM

CHAIR HERRON introduced a video previously recorded by
Representative Mke Chenault, Speaker of the House of
Represent ati ves.

10: 21: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, Alaska State Legislature, via a
previously recorded video, inforned the conmttee that his
constituency includes enployees of the ConocoPhillips Alaska

(ConocoPhillips) Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG plant that was
recently scheduled to close. He said that he knew nost of the
enpl oyees at the Kenai plant, and expressed his hope that other
Al askans are aware that the facility was one of the few val ue-
added producers in the state, in addition to providing 30-60
hi ghly-paid jobs in the comunity. He opined it is inperative
for legislators to do all they can to prevent the failure of
ot her industries. In addition to jobs, other losses to the
| ocal community include the industry's contributions to
community organi zations, to schools, to the tax base, and to the
electric utility's power |oad. Representative Chenault said, "I
think it's a sad day in Alaska's history that we're losing a
facility that has been a contributing factor to Alaska's growh
for the | ast 40 sonme-odd years ...."

10: 24: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON refl ected on Representative Chenault's |ong
i nvol venent and depth of know edge in oil and gas matters on the
Kenai Peninsula. Representative A son said his constituents are
al so affected, as nost of the people that work at the plant or
on the platforns live in his district - even though the plant is
| ocated in Representative Chenault's district - and the inpact
of the closure will be felt throughout the central peninsula.
The comm ssioner of the Departnent of Labor & W irkforce
Devel opnent (DLWD) has offered services to the enployees simlar
to those available at the Kenai transition office established

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -4- February 15, 2011



for the enployees of the Agrium Inc. (Agriun) plant that was
closed a few years ago. Representative O son opined the
followng causes I|led to the «closure: the failure of
ConocoPhillips and Marathon G| Conpany (Marathon) to obtain a
10-year extension of their export license led to their inability
to obtain long-term contracts with Tokyo El ectric Power Conpany,
| ncorporated (TEPCO ; a world-w de glut of cheap natural gas and
LNG from shale and other sources that have |ower costs of
devel opment and production; the length of tinme taken by the
Regul at ory Conmm ssion of Alaska (RCA) for its decisions on the
approval of Cook Inlet natural gas contracts stopped new
explorers from looking for natural gas; the disruption in the
| ocal nmarket for natural gas due to the Agrium plant closure.
Representative O son concluded this closure will not have quite
as much inpact on the Kenai Peninsula as did the Agrium cl osure,
but there will be a significant |oss of property taxes.

10: 31: 10 AM

TOM NELSON, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLWD), stated that
his departnment has been in contact with ConocoPhillips and has
an established good working relationship with the conpany. He
expressed his understanding that Marathon O has no enpl oyees
affected by the plant closure, and that ConocoPhillips has begun
to search for other opportunities for the approximately 30
enpl oyees who have |ost their jobs. The departnent is also in
contact with the legislators from the Kenai Peninsula and with
| ocal governmental officials. |In addition to hel pi ng enpl oyees,
DLWD works with enployers, and has found that job openings are
available for the primary occupations affected such as
operators, roustabouts, and instrunment technicians. In fact,
Schul nberger Ol Field Services, Mirathon G|, Arctic Slope
Regi onal Corporation (ASRC) Energy  Servi ces, and Tesoro
Corporation will have job openings this spring. The depart nment
also has a rapid response team staffed by enploynent and
trai ning professionals who respond to this type of situation by
wor king with enployers, enployees, and the bargaining units that

represent displaced enployees. Services from the DLW include
providing information and referrals to resources at the job
center. Furt her nore, DLMD provides the enployers wth

information on applying for U S. Departnent of Labor Trade
Adj ust nent Assistance (TAA) funds for additional training and
enpl oynent resources.

10: 35:10 AM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 5- February 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for further information on the
Trade Adj ustnent Assistance act.

10: 35: 27 AM

MR. NELSON responded that approximtely 8,000 residents in the
state are eligible for TAA services. The act applications are
for conpanies that have gone out of business or are depressed
because of foreign prices or conpetition. In further response
to Representative Gardner, he confirned that the TAA client is
the enployer and assistance services are provided to the
enpl oyees.

10: 36: 14 AM

DAN CLARK, Manager, Cook Inlet Assets, ConocoPhillips Al aska,
said he would provide a brief history of the plant, the recent

announcenent to ConocoPhillips's enployees regarding the
cessation of LNG energy exports, and a statenent of
ConocoPhillips's comm tnents. The Kenai Liquefied Natural Gas
(LNG plant has been in operation for 41 years and is currently
the only significant industrial user of natural gas in
Sout hcentral . On 10/5/2010, the plant received a two-year
export license which will expire on 3/31/2013; however, market

conditions do not support the continued operation of the plant.
The plant is jointly owned by ConocoPhillips and WMarathon, and
will cease LNG exports effective in April or May 2011. Al though
mar ket conditions are not commercially viable for the export of
LNG, ConocoPhillips will continue to operate and staff both the
Beluga River and North Cook Inlet wunits. ConocoPhillips wll
preserve the plant for future options such as exports of North
Sl ope natural gas, or a reconfiguration of the plant to an
inmport facility. He assured the conmttee that his conpany wl|
continue to work with affected enployees to |ook for other
opportunities w thin ConocoPhillips, and wll honor its gas
supply contracts wth Chugach Electric Association, Inc. and
ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany. M. dark concluded that the Kenai
LNG pl ant has been safely and efficiently operated for 41 years
and ConocoPhillips is proud of, and thankful for, its enployees.

10: 39: 20 AM

CHAI R HERRON asked whether the plant will be preserved in "warm
or cold nothballing” condition.

10: 39: 38 AM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 6- February 15, 2011



MR. CLARK said basically the plant will be maintained in good
condition so that it could be "utilized in an expeditious
fashion."

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER asked what would be involved to
reconfigure the plant for inports.

10: 40: 15 AM

MR. CLARK advised that the plant has been I|iquefying, storing

and piping natural gas. A reconfiguration to allow inports wll
require piping nodifications from the existing docks, and the
construction of facilities to take the stored LNG vaporize it,
and pipe it out.

CHAI R HERRON, observing that ConocoPhillips makes plans for "50,
60, 70, 80 years out," surmsed its future may include inporting
LNG.

10: 41: 45 AM

MR. CLARK acknow edged that utilities believe the inportation of
LNG may be needed, and ConocoPhillips intends to inport or
export to neet the future need.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether securing a 10-year export
license would have allowed ConocoPhillips to fulfill its
contract to export LNG to Japan.

10: 42: 26 AM

MR. CLARK said that it was difficult to speculate on other
scenari os.

CHAI R HERRON asked whether the state was involved in the effort
to renew the export |icense.

10: 43: 24 AM

MR. CLARK responded that his conpany has | ong experience in this
matter; however, there was support during the application for
the last export |I|icense. He added that ConocoPhillips has
marketing responsibility without direct interaction from the
state.

CHAI R HERRON asked whether state governnment anticipated the
cl osure of the plant.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -7- February 15, 2011



MR. CLARK said he did not know. ConocoPhi | I'i ps sought the
| i cense extension and commerci al contracts.

10: 44: 55 AM

CHAI R HERRON questioned the future summer demand for gas.

MR. CLARK advised that the gas that would have been exported by
the plant will have to be restricted, and gas production will be
"shut in" as a result.

10:45:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COLSON observed nost of ConocoPhillips's assets
are older, and may not "[cone] back, at sone point of tinme in
the future."”

MR. CLARK affirmed that fields in the Beluga R ver and North
Cook Inlet units have been in production for 40-plus years; thus
those with higher |evels of water production are at risk. Hi s
conpany will manage these conditions as best it can to mnimze
the potential inpact on future production.

10: 46: 57 AM

CHAI R HERRON asked for an estinmate of the costs to restart the
pl ant .

MR. CLARK opined that a restart for a long-term gas supply would
require significant investnent. On the other hand, a short-term
situation would be assessed differently. In further response to
Chair Herron, he speculated the cost wuld be "hundreds of
mllions of dollars.”

10: 49: 26 AM

CHAI R HERRON recalled efforts to bring newconers into the Cook
Inlet gas fields, and asked whether the closure inpacts the
pl ans for a jack-up rig.

MR. CLARK confirnmed that the market for gas is not there, but
this would not inpact the search for oil.

10: 50: 10 AM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 8- February 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether ConocoPhillips has LNG
pl ants in other markets.

MR. CLARK said ConocoPhillips has a facility in northern
Australia that sells in the Asia-Pacific markets, a facility in
Qatar, and ownership in several others.

10: 50: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH then asked whether the conpany was
able to secure economcally viable contracts for other markets.

MR. CLARK explained that those particular contracts "have been
very, very significant investnents within the last five years
... or so, and so have been l|long-term arrangenents that have
been put in place wth buyers.” In further response to
Representative Fairclough, he estimated that the |length of those
contracts is about 20 years.

10: 51: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH surm sed these contracts were for the
Asi an mar ket .

MR. CLARK expressed his belief that significant portions go to
Japan.

10: 51: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether higher operating costs
and increased transportation costs were factors in the closure
of the Kenai plant.

MR. CLARK recalled that 40 years ago the Kenai plant was the
only source of LNG exported to Japan, but is now | ess than one-
half of 1 percent of that supply. Regarding costs, he said
there are multiple conponents in the economcs of the business
climate; generally, the smaller the plant, the higher the cost
per unit. In further response to Representative Fairclough, he
said the capacity of the Kenai plant is about 230 mllion cubic
feet per day, which at the time was of significant size, but
"nowadays, plants are built rmuch bigger."

10: 53: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether the taxing structure has
anything to do with the fornmula for ConocoPhillips's return on

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 9- February 15, 2011



investnment that caused the facility to be closed, rather than
securing anot her market.

MR. CLARK noted that taxes are an elenent when |ooking at the
val ue of production; however, taxes are very low in the Cook
Inlet thus the tax systemwas not a hindrance.

10: 54: 28 AM

CHAIR HERRON said, "Some have characterized this as a silver
l[ining. Do you agree?"

MR. CLARK stated his conpany has articulated the benefits of
keeping the plant open, particularly during the w nter nonths;
in fact, he opined, "Wiat | would say is | think there's many
benefits to the plant operating ...."

10: 55: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he did not understand why, when there
are shortages in the supply of natural gas in Southcentral, that
producing wells are being shut down. The plant is connected
to the supply grid so it would have a market for its gas there.

10: 56: 24 AM

MR. CLARK explained that the local market in Southcentral is
highly cyclical, thus the demand on a sumrer day can be 12 tines
less than it is on a winter day. The gas literally has no place
to go in the sumrer. Conversely, there could be a shortage on a
peak winter day. Until there is an underground storage facility
that gas can be injected into during the sumer to "flatten out
the demand,"” there is nothing that can be done. In further
response to Representative Keller, he clarified that there is
sonme producer-owned underground storage available now, but the
project for storage with open access by third parties is not
expected until 2012.

10: 58: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked whether the ConocoPhillips export
sal es contract was with a single contract.

MR. CLARK answered that the current contract is a joint contract
wi th Marathon and ConocoPhillips to jointly sell LNG to Tokyo
Electric Power Conpany (TEPCO and Tokyo Gas Co. Ltd. In
further response to Representative Tuck, he said these conpanies

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -10- February 15, 2011



have purchased the LNG exported from the Kenai plant exclusively
for over 40 years, with the exception of a single cargo sold to
a facility in Sakhalin, Russia.

10: 59: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked for the duration of the present
contracts wth TEPCO and Tokyo Gas.

MR. CLARK said the contracts have nmatched the dates of the
export |icenses.

11: 00: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK clarified that he wanted to know about the
duration of contracts with suppliers other than ConocoPhillips
and Mar at hon.

MR. CLARK said he was unsure, but he opined they typically
secure supplies for |onger periods of tine.

11: 01: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK pointed out the difficulties caused by a
license limted to two-year increnents such as keeping a plant
going, responding to price forecasts, plant nmaintenance, and
shorter contracts.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER questioned whether ConocoPhillips was
required to pay taxes on the gas reserves after a well is shut
down, and the affects thereof.

11: 01: 58 AM

MR. CLARK expl ai ned his conpany pays production taxes - if there
is no production, there are no taxes.

REPRESENTATI VE = GARDNER  asked whet her ConocoPhi | l'i ps has
contracts with TEPCO and Tokyo Gas to supply gas produced
el sewher e

11: 02: 41 AM

MR. CLARK said yes, fromthe facility in Australia

CHAIR HERRON requested M. Cdark's opinion on the closure's
effect on gas storage.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -11- February 15, 2011



MR. CLARK observed that the LNG plant has served to store gas
until it was needed. That capability will not be avail abl e next
winter - this highlights the urgency of the storage project.

11: 04: 13 AM

JANIS WLSON, Comm ssioner, Regulatory Comm ssion of Al aska,
informed the commttee the RCA has no regulatory authority over
the LNG plant or any of its transactions. In fact, the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) has recently asserted
jurisdiction over the plant and the U S. Departnent of Energy
has the regulatory jurisdiction to approve or deny the export

li cense. She relayed the concern expressed by Southcentral
utilities over the closure because they have been using the
plant as gas storage during the wnter. That is the nost

critical elenent of the situation fromthe RCA' s point of view

11: 05: 58 AM

CHAI R HERRON asked Ms. WIlson to conment on the |ong decision-
maki ng process related to gas in Southcentral.

M5. WLSON said the RCA process for approving gas contracts is
dependent wupon whether the contracts are contested by parties
interested in participating in a litigated hearing. If there
are no protests, contracts are approved routinely and quickly.
In addition, the RCA is directed by statutory tinelines that
have been in place since 2003.

11: 07: 15 AM

CHAI R HERRON questioned whether the Southcentral energy supply
is considered to be a problem by producers, the utilities, and
t he RCA.

11: 07: 32 AM

M5. WLSON said that question is better answered by the
utilities as the RCA does not contract for gas, but serves as
"the approving body, once the gas is contracted for." In
further response to Chair Herron, she agreed that the RCA is an
“inmpartial observer."

11: 08: 13 AM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -12- February 15, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH recalled she was serving on the
Anchorage assenbly at the time two uncontested conmitnents were
turned down by the RCA. Furthernore, her experience is that RCA
commi ssioners have taken a stand for or against a particular
i ssue. She asked which entity objected to the contract wth
Mar at hon that was denied based on the price to the consuner.
Representative Fairclough clarified that ENSTAR and other
utilities were before the RCA asking to secure 20-year contracts
for Sout hcentral .

11: 09: 39 AM

M5. WLSON responded that in 2006 a Marathon contract was
opposed by Reqgulatory Affairs & Public Advocacy (RAPA), Cvil
Di vision, Department of Law (DOL), the Tesoro Corporation, and a
consuner.

11:10: 15 AM

CHAIR HERRON asked Ms. WIson to supply conplete information
about this issue in witten form

11:10: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON observed that there have been three years
with serious LNG shortages, and outages were prevented only by
ConocoPhillips - wth the approval of its custonmers -
voluntarily diverting partial shipments of LNG

11:11: 42 AM

COLLEEN STARRI NG President, ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany, advised
that one of the contracts nentioned by Representative Fairclough
was a 10-year commtnment with Marathon that would have provided
ENSTAR sufficient gas until 2016. The parties that objected
were Tesoro and RAPA, and the fact that the contract was tied to
Henry Hub pricing nmechanisns influenced a close vote by the RCA

commi ssi oners  not to approve. Al so, in 2007-2008, a
ConocoPhil l'i ps and Marathon five-year contract was not approved.
Subsequently, in order to obtain gas during the peak w nter

nmont hs, ENSTAR has used shorter contracts and different pricing
scenari 0s.

11:13: 57 AM

CARRlI LOCKHART, Asset Team Manager, Marathon Q1 Corporation,
recogni zed that the plant has a long and inportant history in

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -13- February 15, 2011



Alaska and its closure is difficult on its enployees and the
community; however, Marathon has storage nechanisns to provide
flexibility, thus its operations are not inpacted. She advi sed
that supply was a factor in the decision, but that Marathon can
continue to nmeet its contractual obligations.

11:15: 04 AM

CHAIR HERRON then asked M. dark whether there was a
possibility that the plant would be sold to the utilities that
purchase its product.

MR. CLARK expressed his conpany's intent to secure the plant and
consider all options and offers.

11: 16: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether use of the storage
facilities was possible.

MR. CLARK explained that in order to use the LNG tanks for
storage, an investnent for re-gasification heaters would need to
be rmade. In concl usion, he noted that Mar at hon  and
ConocoPhillips have a slightly different perspective on the
closure, and restated his conpany's conmmtnent to help its
af fected enpl oyees and to neet its |local supply commtnents.

11:17: 52 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from11:17 a.m to 11:18 a. m

11:18: 04 AM

HB 67-FI LM PRODUCTI ON TAX CREDI T

11: 21: 17 AM

CHAI R HERRON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 67, "An Act relating to transferable film
production tax credits; and providing for an effective date by
anending the effective dates of secs. 3 and 4, ch. 63, SLA
2008. "

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER introduced Anendnent 2, | abel ed 27-
LS0356\ A. 2, Bull ock, 2/14/11, which read:

Page 2, followng line 5:

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -14- February 15, 2011



Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 4. AS 44.33.235(c) is anended to read:

(c) In determning the anmount of the tax credit,
the percentage provided by (b) of this section shall
be increased by the filmoffice based on the follow ng
criteria:

(1) an additional 10 percent of qualified
expenditures that are wages paid to Al aska residents;

(2) an additional four [TWJ) percent of
qgual i fied expenditures nade in a rural area; and

(3) an additional two percent of qualified
expenditures made in the state between Cctober 1 and
March 30."

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER expl ai ned the purpose of the anmendnent is
to increase the tax credit for the rural area incentive from 2
percent to 4 percent. He said this will address the additiona
operational costs and logistical issues incurred when filmng in
communities of rural Al aska.

11: 22: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON i ntroduced Anmendment 3 | abel ed 27-
LS0365\ A. 3, Bull ock, 2/14/11, which read:

Page 3, following line 9:

Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 5. AS 44.33.239(7) is anended to read:
(7) "rural area" means a community wth a

popul ation of 1,500 or less or a community with a
popul ation of 6,500 [5,500] or Iless that 1is not
connected by road or rail to Anchorage or Fairbanks."

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.
REPRESENTATI VE COLSON expl ai ned the purpose of the anendnent is
to increase the population of an identified rural area from
5,500 to 6, 500.

11: 23: 21 AM

CHAI R HERRON opened public testinony.

11:23: 40 AM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 15- February 15, 2011



PETE KALAMARIDES said he was the local captain on the novie
Everybody Loves Whales, and was enployed with a crew of 30-40
ot hers. M. Kal amari des expressed his support of the bill and
the proposed anendnent, because the novie was a very good
economc stimulus for Anchorage, and the cast was welconed
t hr oughout t own.

11: 24: 43 AM

Cl NDY DRAPER, Rentals Manager, ABC Mtorhonme and Car Rental,
Inc., said her conmpany rented notorhomes during the filmng of
CGhost Vision and Everybody Loves Whal es. These contracts added
over 1,500 additional rental days to their rental season and
made a "significant boost to, you know, a fairly small conpany."
Ms. Draper said she was in favor of extending the tax credits.

11: 25: 41 AM

BRI CE HABERGER infornmed the conmttee he is a life-1ong Al askan.
He referred to his past testinony on |egislation supporting the
creation of jobs. M. Haberger worked on Everybody Loves Whal es
as a production scout and as a grip on Ghost Vision. He
expressed his belief that the bill will allow Alaska to grow a
crew base that will rival that of any other state, and one that
is technically proficient and know edgeabl e. He pointed out
that the private sector has begun training Al aska residents for
work in this industry.

11: 28: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked whether M. Haberger had seen the
films screened at the Al aska Federation of Natives (AFN) events.

MR HABERCER sai d no.

11: 28: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER urged support for the work done for AFN by
students in the Lower Yukon region, and other areas of rural
Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE TUCK asked how much work the two productions
gener at ed.

11: 28: 52 AM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -16- February 15, 2011



MR. HARBEGER said he woirked for about one week on each
producti on. In further response to Representative Tuck, he
explained that after graduating from college in film his
cl assnmates | ooked for work in Los Angeles, but he is pursuing
his career in Al aska.

11: 30: 09 AM

TED SMTH said he was a nenber of the cast of On the lce, a
nmovie that was filned in Barrow. The novie was screened at the
Sundance Film Festival and received excellent reviews. M .
Smith said he was in favor of the bill, because npvies create an
opportunity to introduce the cultures of rural Al aska.

11: 31: 47 AM

GARY  ZI MVERNAN, CGener al Manager - St at ewi de, Avis Rent-A-Car
(Avis), stated his conpany enploys 110 residents across the
state and is in favor of HB 67. There is a benefit to all
facets of the econony from filmng novies on |ocation. He
poi nted out that a portion of his conpany's revenue is the state
vehicle rental tax that goes to the state, and the munici pal
taxes that support conmmunities. M. Zinmerman opined that
Al aska needs to diversify its econony through a long-term
commtnent to the filmindustry.

11:34:27 AM

MAYA SALGANAK, Assistant Professor of FilmVideo Arts, Director
of Film Studies, University of Anchorage Fairbanks, said her
responsibility is to help guide students interested in working
in the film industry. The University of Al aska (UA) Board of
Regents is reviewing a proposal on whether to begin a Bachel or

of Arts (BA) degree program in film by 2013. Since the
establishment of the Alaska Film Ofice, D vision of Econonc
Devel opnent, Department of Commerce, Community & Economc

Devel opnent (DCCED), there has been anmazing growth in film and
she has been able to place students wth dozens of film
conpanies from all over the world. Students have worked in
television comercials and feature filns, in venues from
Anchorage to Barrow, and the program has received funding from
vari ous sources. Student enrollnent in the UAF film program and
rel ated courses has grown by 60 percent in the last four years.
Ms. Sal ganek said tax credits are the first consideration when
the film industry decides on a location; in fact, wthout the
incentive program the long-term growmh of the industry is
threatened, even if the university supports the availability of

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -17- February 15, 2011



filmcrews through a BA program She advised that extending the
incentive program will solidify the state's ability to bring a
"full-force infrastructure into the state.™

11: 37: 36 AM

GREG KESSLER, Al aska Commercial Director, Totem Ccean Trailer
Express, Inc. (TOTE), stated that in the past year his conpany
shi pped cargo for two productions, Everybody Loves Wales and
Ghost Vi si on. In fact, TOTE noved about 35 shipnents north and
south for the novie production conpanies, and is in the
preparation stages for future shipnments. H's conmpany and others
will benefit from the reauthorization of the tax credits, which
will continue to nake Al aska an attractive place for the film
i ndustry, and bring new and diversified business opportunities
to the state.

11: 39: 38 AM

KAREN TALLENT, Studio Teacher, said she worked on three film
projects as a studio teacher. As required by state law, a
studio teacher provides education for, and ensures the | egal
protection and safety of, mnors who are involved in the
entertai nment industry. Ms. Tallent expressed her support of
the bill saying her experience was that the film industry
provides jobs for film crews, economc opportunities, and
mar ket i ng pronotion for Al aska tourism product s, and
busi nesses. She is now a studio teacher full-tinme because of
the increased interest in filmng in Alaska due to the tax
credits. Forty-five other states, Canada, and other countries
have incentive prograns in place and it is inportant for Al aska
to have a viable and conpetitive program Ms. Tallent saw at
| east 100 crew and 2,000 extras enployed in Everybody Loves
Whales and related that the out-of-state cast shopped and
traveled while in Alaska. She concluded the film industry is a
multi-mllion dollar industry that wll diversify the econony,
provi de jobs, and increase tourism

11:45: 02 AM

[HB 67 was heard and hel d. ]
ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Conmittee on Econom c Devel opnent, International Trade
and Tourism neeting was adjourned at 11:45 a.m

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 18- February 15, 2011



